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The Moulton Courthouse Square is situated at the intersection of Highways 24 and 33 approximately
thirty-seven miles southwest of Huntsville and thirty miles southeast of Florence, Alabama (Figure 1). The square,
the county seat of Lawrence County, - contains early to late twentieth-century buildings arranged around the
perimeter of Lawrence, Main, Court, and Market Streets: The Lawrence County Courthouse stands at the focal point
of the square. Although some of the buildings have undergone some minor alterations, the overall integrity of the
Moulton Courthouse Square has not been diminished.

Highways 24, 33, and 157 form the axes along which the town of Moulton has developed during its one
hundred and seventy year history. Of recent construction, Highway 157 cuts a diagonal path on the east side of town
approximately one mile from the square. Signage from corporate America, i.e., McDonald's, a state wide grocery
and drug store chain, and local entrepreneurs vie for attention on either side of the transportation route. This
commercial strip with its asphalt parking lots and plywood, plastic, aluminum, and glass buildings initially posed a
problem for the square, drawing away businesses seeking more modern means of attracting consumers; but other
merchants in the historic square have begun to fill their void.

Highway 24 serves as a bridge between the recent developments on Highway 157 and the courthouse square.
The buildings along this corridor were constructed during the post World War II era building boom. Those buildings
nearest Highway 157 sprang up in the 1980s and early 1990s. A number of 1950s and 1960s era, wood frame and
brick ranches line either side of the Highway 24 (Court Street) midway between the new transportation corridor and
the square. A series of brick and concrete block commercial edifices constructed shortly after the close of World War
II cluster near the northeast corner of the square. Among them are an erstwhile hamburger stand now doing duty as a
used car lot, a cafe with counter, and a hardware store.

Many residential units have accumulated along Highway 33 and its offshoots over the years. The older
architectural faire tends to congregate near the north and south sides of the square. An amalgam of vernacular forms,
Victorians, bungalows, and a ranct or two defines this streetscape.

A mixture of the new and old lies south of the square. To fill the needs of a growing community, single
and multiple residential units have been built on recently developed real estate situated a half a mile or more from the
downtown area. A panoply of bungalows clad in weatherboard, brick, and fieldstone rest on lots with a courthouse
view. They are joined by a smaller number of Tudor Revival cottages and ranches.

A variety of buildings, most of which are of recent design, occupy positions in the vicinity of the Moulton
Courthouse Square. The northwest corner of Market and Court Streets is bounded by a park replete with a gazebo,
landscaping, walkways, and retro cast iron lamp posts. The United Methodist Church stands on the north side of
the park. The Citizen’s Bank drive through kiosk is situated on an expanse of asphalt just west of the square.
Mouiton City Hall, ensconced in a modern brick building, adjoins the Citizen’s Bank lot. A number of brick and
concrete block edifices display their wares on Market and Walnut Streets one block south of the courthouse. A
building of recent design which houses municipal services, stands just south of the Moulton Advertiser (19 CR) on
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the northwest corner of Walnut and Main Streets. The Bank of Moulton with its flat roof, plain wrap around
cornice, pylons, and thin vertical windows and a separate drive through is stationed one block east of the Lawrence
County Courthouse Annex (27 NCR). There are several brick and concrete block buildings from the 1950s and
1960s near the northeastern intersection of Court and Main Streets.

Courthouse Square Description

The Moulton Courthouse Square consists of two elements, the Lawrence County Courthouse and a
collection of commercial buildings arranged in a square configuration.

The two story, limestone veneer courthouse with a basement is positioned at the center of an open square.
The square, which rises a number of feet above street level, serves as an earthen dais on which rests the foundation of
the courthouse. Trees stand at the comners. Grass extends from all four sides of the government building to street
side. Shrubbery wraps around the base of the building. Centrally placed tiers of stone steps conduct pedestrian
traffic from the streets to the courthouse and vice versa. A parking lot occupies part of the west square.

The Lawrence County Courthouse is contained within two sets of parallel streets. Court and Lawrence
Streets border the government building to the north and south, respectively. At right angles to Court and Lawrence,
Market and Main Streets line the west and east sides of the court building, respectively. Parking spaces are
positioned around the square. Sidewalks extend between the streets and store fronts. A number of retro cast iron
lamp posts and benches are intermittently placed around the square.

A battery of one story, brick commercial buildings adjoin the south side of the square. The Moulton
Advertiser (19 CR) and Brewer Insulation, Inc. (20 CR), both of which were formerly the Pepsi Cola Bottling
Works, are among the four buildings in this block. They are separated from Shelton’s Cleaners (18 NCR) by an
alley.

The Lawrence County Archives (Moulton Bank) (23 CR) anchors the southeast corner of the intersection of
Lawrence and Main Streets. Several one story, brick buildings occupy the real estate immediately south of the
erstwhile bank outside the district boundaries. A parking lot borders its east side.

The east side of the square is defined by a amalgam of edifices. The Drug Shop (29 NCR) and Memories
Antiques (24 CR) serve as bookends for the row. In between stand several one story brick buildings and the three
story Courthouse Annex (27 NCR).

The Comer Florist (30 CR) stands at the corner of the northeast corner of Court and Main Streets. Brick
houses of commerce adjoin the florist to the east and north.

A row of brick businesses constitute the north side of the square. A military surplus store (8 CR) and Blue
Ribbon Shoes (2 CR) define the ends of the row. The Alexander Building (6 CR) lies roughly in the middle.
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ClassSical

The west side of the square features yet another collection of brick commercial edifices. McCulloch
Furniture Co. (42-45 CR), King’s (37 and 38 CR), and Citizen’s Bank (39 NCR) occupy multiple spaces in the
block.

The Moulton Courthouse Square Historic District is composed of buildings built between 1911 and 1960.
The majority of them were constructed from 1920 to 1940 and 1945 to 1950. All but two of the resources are
classified as one and multiple story commercial block buildings. Two edifices, an erstwhile bank and the
courthouse, evince characteristics of the Classical Modern vocabulary. Located in the historic district are forty-four
commercial buildings, two public buildings, and one theater. Forty of the resources are contributing, seven are
noncontributing.

Commercial buildings constitute an overwhelming percentage of the resources in the Moulton Courthouse
Square Historic District. Of the thirty-nine contributing commercial buildings, thirty-two are one story commercial
blocks; seven are multiple story commercial blocks, one of which qualifies as a vault type commercial building with
Modern . details (Bank of Moulton-Lawrence County Archives 23 CR). A vault type commercial building
is characterized by being two to three stories with a large, tall central opening on the front facade. The multiple
story commercial blocks are constructed of brick or concrete block. They feature plate glass display windows and
doors, and some awnings. The upper story is used as office space and storage. The one story commercial blocks are
constructed of brick or concrete block. They feature plate glass display windows and doors, and some awnings. Both
types of commercial blocks have little ornamentation. Decoration consists of tile inlays and corbeling. The Star
Theatre is the only movie house extant in the district and falls under the multiple story commercial block typology.
Constructed in 1947, the moving picture house rises to a height of two stories; it features concrete block
construction. Carrera glass panels are attached to the lower facade.

There are two public buildings in the square, the Lawrence County Courthouse and the Courthouse Annex.
Built in 1936, the courthouse is designed in the Classical Modern style as is the Bank of Moulton-Lawrence County
Archives (23 CR). This style blended the classical lines and associations of the Classical Revival with the
innovative decorative ornamentation of the Art Deco period. Dominant on these courthouses is a sense of verticality
and smooth planes. Narrow windows set back from the facades in dark panes help to emphasize this smooth vertical
movement. Classically inspired columns or pilasters are also found on these buildings. Ornament is subtle and
refined, set in bands around the buildings or topping an entranceway or window. These buildings break with earlier
traditions in architecture but clearly employ earlier principles as well. The north and south facades of the Lawrence
County Courthouse feature porticoes with entablatures and four fluted columns. Its temple with wings form is faced
with limestone. The annex (27 NCR), formerly the county jail, rises to a height of three stories. Like the
courthouse, it has a basement. Unlike the courthouse, the annex is built of red brick. It was the unfortunate victim
of a misguided restoration in 1955, which contributes to its noncontributing status.
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Archaeological Component: Although no formal archaeological survey has been conducted of this district area,
the potential for subsurface remainsis good;: " buried portions may contain information that may be
useful in interpreting the entire area.

Inventory

The following is both a description of the present and past status of the resources in the Moulton
Courthouse Square Historic District. Each of the resources is assigned a number from 1 to 47. The resources are
organized by street and number hierarchy. The buildings are divided into two classifications: those that contribute to
the significance of the historic district and those that do not contribute to the significance. Contributing resources
are abbreviated (CR) and non contributing (NCR). There are 40 contributing and 7 non contributing resources in the
historic district.

Court Street

1. 14537 Court. McCulloch Furniture Co. (CR). ca. 1947. One Story Commercial Block. The first building
located on Court Street just off the square was constructed after the end of World War II. The one story commercial
block is constructed of concrete block faced with brick. It has a flat composite roof of tar and gravel fronted by a
parapet. Stylistic detailing is limited to a pattern of lighter colored bricks inset into a sea of red brick. The
symmetric facade facing Court Street displays three bays. A double leaf door with two single leafs with muitiple
panes of glass is flanked on either side by two plate glass windows. The interior features a tile covered floor and
ceiling. The building lacks partitions for greater furniture display area. A large opening has been cut into its east
wall to permit cross traffic between it and a section of McCulloch’s situated on the southwest corer of Court and
Market Streets.

2. 14319 Court. Blue Ribbon Shoes (CR). ca. 1938. One Story Commercial Block. Blue Ribbon Shoes is like
the rest of the square buildings in that it has a tlat roof of tar and gravel. The one story brick building is fronted by a
parapet. A string course plays out beneath the parapet. A sign advertising “Blue Ribbon Shoes” is attached to the
facade on top of two recessed panels. A metal panel covers a transom. Five metal rods enable a flat metal awningto
project over the facade bays and sidewalk. - A plate glass dg)or is centered between two plate glass windows, a section
of each of which is canted. On the inside, the floor is cavgred with linoleum tiles and the ceiling with another form
of tiles. The interior is devoid of partition walls. The large open space is filled with ables covered with shoes.

In 1939 the commercial block was listed at 101 Court Street (Figure 3). An awto sales and service occupied
it. The image-in Figure 5 presents the building’s appearance during the 1950s. Numerous bays punctuated the west
wall. A pool hall is rumored to have been in it at one time.

3. 14321 Court. F.D. Gibson Building-Fashion Outlet (CR). ca. 1926. Multiple Story Commercial Block.
Rising to a height of two stories, the Fashion Outlet, or the F.D. Gibson Building built in 1926 according to a
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name and date plate above the second floor bays, towers above its neighbors. Constructed of brick, the commercial
building sports roof construction and materials typical in the square. A parapet rises above the roof with corbeling
across the top of the facade. A decorative rectangular pattern of brick is inset in the brick wall. Two multipane
windows with casement windows pierce the brick on the second floor. The second floor is used as storage. A metal
signage panel demarcates the division between the first and second floors; it covers a transom. Metal rods enable a
flat awning to float over the first floor fenestration. A single plate glass door stands near the corner of the south and
west walls of the building. Plate glass windows provide a view of the interior. The first floor interior is used for
product display. The floor is covered with carpet, and the ceiling with an early version of acoustic tiles. Columns

support the upper story.

In 1939 the F.D. Gibson Building was listed at 105 Court Street. The two story structure was constructed
of brick. Early 1940s aerial photography captured the likeness of the rooftop and south wall of the F.D. Gibson
Building. The second floor appears to have been pierced by a series of individual bays rather than the two present
openings. The inset of light colored bricks on the second floor south wall, which is visible today, was noticeable
in the 1940s. In its early days, the commercial edifice functioned as a dry goods store. The building served as the
Ritz Theatre run by Mr. and Mrs. Clark Hodges in the 1940s (Jordan 1984). The Ritz closed in 1947 when the Star
Theatre opened.

4. 14325 Court. Wilkerson’s Diamonds (CR). ca. 1945. One Story Commercial Block. The one story
commercial building has a flat roof of tar and gravel. It is fronted by a parapet. A noticeable signage plate is affixed
to the top of the upper facade. Anchored into the brick, three metal rods suspend a flat metal awning over the
sidewalk. The fenestration plays out beneath the awning. Plate glass fronts two display cases, one on either side of
a single leaf entry. Carpet covers the floor; acoustic tile forms a suspended ceiling. The jewelry store has two
spaces. The first space functions as customer service and product display; the other room as work, storage, and office
space.

The historic time frame of this business house is similar to that of the following building. Reportedly, the
building has always contained a jewelry store within in its four walls (Luallen 1996).

5. 14329 Court. T.S.S. Enterprises (CR). ca. 1940. One Story Commercial Block. The one story commercial
block has a flat roof of tar and gravel. It is fronted by a parapet. Embellishment is lacking. Beneath the parapet are
two recessed panels. A canvas awning is suspended from the brick of the south wall of the building. The awning
projects over the entrance and covers a transom. Plate glass serves as the facade windows and doors. The inside of
the building is divided by partition into two zones. The largest of the two is devoted to customer service and product
display; the other serves as storage and office space. The floor is covered with carpet. The ceiling, one of the few
in the square not covered with acoustic tiles, is constructed of painted sheetrock or plaster. Interspersed columns
support the weight of the ceiling.

A building was present on this site in the 1930s as revealed by a 1939 Sanborn map (Figure 3). Little can
be determined about the building from the map, but it was not present in an early 1940s photograph (Figure 4). The
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present building may be the one captured in a 1956 photographic image. Although exact identification is difficult to
determine as only its roof is shown. Carol’s Fabrics was once housed in the store as suggested by the painted
signage on the facade. A furniture place operated in it at another point during its history (Luallen 1996).

6. 14341, 14343, 14345 Court. Alexander Building (CR). ca. 1947. Multiple Story Commercial Block. The
Alexander Building is an animal of different color. Whereas most of the buildings utilize red brick, the Alexander
Building exhibits a preference for masonry of an ocher hue. However, it makes use of the same roofing materials.
It, too, has a parapet. Embellishment is demonstrated in the form of a corbeled string course and decorative terra
cotta colored diamond and cross motifs. The second floor of the building has seven steel casement windows that face
Court Street. Some of the panes of these windows have been replaced with air conditioning units. Metal rods
anchored into the front, or Court Street side, suspend a metal awning across the building. A metal signage panel
advertising “ Consolidated Concepts, Inc.,” a defunct enterprise no longer in the building, extends across a portion of
the facade above the first floor fenestration. The ground floor is divided into two stores. Each store front is
characterized by plate glass doors and windows. A single leaf entrance near the corner of the south and east walls of
the building leads to a stairwell. In turn, the stairwell, the walls of which are sheathed in wood paneling, leads to
the second floor. The stairwell empties out onto a hallway. Wood paneled walls and an acoustic tile covered ceiling
are evident in the hall. Wood and glass panel doors lead off the hall into a beauty parlor and a series of four offices,
one of which is vacant. The Lawrence County Courthouse rents out three of the offices. One space is utilized for
tax maps. The walls, floors, and ceilings are as those in the hall. The inside of Tann South on the first floor
features carpet flooring and what may be the original tiled ceiling. Fluorescent lighting is suspended from the
ceiling as is a heating a cooling duct. The interior has a large open space for customer service and product display.
There is a small room in rear toward the north wall of the building that serves as storage and employee use. There is
a basement which contains a reception area and eight tanning beds. The interior of the other first floor store is
currently in use by a church. It is similarly designed in the fashion of Tann South.

According to a 1939 Sanborn map, a brick hardware store stood on the site in the late 1930s (Figure 3).
However, an early 1940s photograph reveals that the lot was empty (Figure 4). On October 2, 1947, The Moulton
Advertiser announced that H.A. Alexander was erecting a two story brick building on the north side of the square.
Two stores were intended for the first floor and office space on the second. H.A. Alexander opened a store in the
building on November 13, 1947 (The Moulton Advertiser). The town of Moulton began renting office space on the
second floor of the H.A. Alexander Building on October 30, 1947 (The Moulton Advertiser). The Elmore Chain of
stores signed a lease to use the west side of the H.A. Alexander Building on December 18, 1947 (The Moulton
Adbvertiser). The roof and part of the south wall of the building are evident in an aerial view of the town square taken
in 1956 (Figure 5).

7. 14355 Court. Designs Hair Salon (CR). ca. 1935. One Story Commercial Block. Designs Hair Salon is
constructed of brick, and has a composite roof of tar and gravel. The facade features a parapet crowned with stone and
two recessed panels. Beneath the panels is a cloth awning, which projects over the entry bay. A covered transom
tops the display bays and entrance. A double leaf entry of wood and glass panels stands between a pair of display
compartments with canted glass walls. The interior has the usual suspended acoustic tile ceiling beneath an original
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ceiling which has an intact skylight. The skylight may be exposed in a future renovation. The floor is made of
wood and is original. The space is divided into two sections: the first is dedicated to customer service with hair
dryers, stylist stations, and hair care product displays. The rear of the inside toward the north wall serves as room for
the employees.

The status of the business house in the late 1930s is noted in a 1939 Sanborn map (Figure 3). The
masonry building was officially located at 123 Main Street. It featured bays in its north and south walls. From
what can be determined from an aerial photograph, the business house had a lightwell, and an awning hung above the
south side bays in the early 1940s (Figure 4). It had brick construction. For much of its history, the building
functioned as a dry goods store (Luatlen 1996). In the 1940s, Hardin’s Grocery and Meats conducted business under
this roof (Jordan 1984).

8. 14363, 14365, 14367 Court. 4 Square Military Surplus and City Square Hardware (CR ). ca. 1932 . One
Story Commercial Block. This one story brick commercial block is divided into three compartments or stores.
They share a composite roof of tar and gravel. Additionally, the businesses share a brick and stone parapet. The
facade is visually divided into three separate store fronts through the presence of brick pilasters or pylons. Each store
front features a recessed panel with decorative brickwork. A continuous metal awning crowns the bays of each store.
4 Square Military Surplus has a large signage panel affixed to the recessed brick panel. There may be an embedded
stone date and/or name plate concealed by this sign. An enclosed clerestory is concealed from view behind the
awning. A central recessed double leaf entry of wood and glass is flanked on either side by display windows and
compartments. The store is the only one of the three that has its original metal panel ceiling and cornice intact.
The wood plank floor may be original. The interior is open with the exception of a room or two toward the rear or
north wall. City Square Hardware, which once occupied two store spaces, has a stone date and name plate inscribed
“W.R. Jackson 1932” above the awning. The bay arrangement is identical to that of 4 Square Military Surplus.
The original floor and ceiling are covered with carpet and suspended acoustic tiles, respectively. The interior is one
large space.

The one story commercial block was recorded by a 1939 Sanborn map (Figure 3). The stores were recorded
as 125, 127, and 129 Court Street. The overall structure was constructed of brick. All three had wood flooring.
The edifice is somewhat discernible in a 1940s photograph (Figure 4). The roof had three fixtures that appear to be
lightwells. The facade was divided into three store fronts and an awning extended across the entire facade. Only the
roof and part of the north wall of the building are visible in a 1956 photographic image (Figure 5). The lightwells
were still present in 1956. A number of bays pierced the north wall. W.R. Jackson, Probate Judge, built these
stores (Jordan 1984). Tom McCulloch operated a grocery in the comner store. Adjacent to it was Milton Hall’s feed
and seed store. V. W. Sparks Grocery, which is painted on the east wall of the building, operated in the corner store
in the 1960s.

Lawrence Street

9. 445 Lawrence. Vacant Building (CR). ca. 1945. One Story Commercial Block. This building adjoins the 1925
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rendition of King’s on its west side. The one story block is clad in a light colored concrete block. The building
features four bays. One bay has a double leaf door. Another has a plate glass door. The other two bays are enclosed.
Currently the edifice is vacant.

That this building is the one depicted as a pool room (217 Lawrence Street) in a 1939 Sanborn map is
doubtful (Figure 3). The edifice shown in Figure 4 appears quite different. It did not appear to be directly adjacent to
its eastern neighbor as the one in the Sanborn map. The 1940s version of the store house may have had a pyramidal
or gable roof. There is no indication to the fact regarding the 1930s version. The one exhibited in a 1950s bird’s
eye view seems more likely to be the one presently residing next to King’s. It had a flat roof conflated with King’s.
The building is believed to have once housed such businesses as a flower shop and a cafe (Luallen 1996).

10. 512 Lawrence. J. Allison Smith Accountant and Liberty National (NCR). ca. 1939. One Story Commercial
Block. The one story commercial block is constructed of brick. It has a flat roof of tar and gravel, which is fronted
by a parapet. Extending across the facade, or north wall of the building is a corbeled string course. Below it are two
recessed panels, one smaller than the other. The original bay arrangement has been altered. It has been largely
enclosed with brick with the exception of four thin windows and a single door of glass. The interior is divided into
two spaces. The historic fabric of the interior is long gone. It has been replaced with walls covered with wood
panels and wallpaper, a ceiling covered in acoustic tiles, and floor covered in carpet. The accounting office hasa
small reception area with a hallway that leads to other offices. Liberty National is similarly composed.

This building may have been present when the Sanborn agency surveyed Moulton in the late 1930s (Figure
3). The store house depicted at 106 and 108 Lawrence Street was constructed of brick. It featured a number of bays
on its north and south sides. The edifice once housed the Crosswaite Store (Jordan 1984). The north side of the
building was altered in a recent restoration.

11. 320Lawrence. Lang’s Photography (CR). ca. 1948. One Story Commercial Block. The one story
commercial block is constructed of concrete block. It has the typical roof fronted by a parapet. The facade is
punctuated by a large opening. Steel spans the top of the opening. Glass is fixed in the bay with a single leaf entry
in the center. The interior exhibits the typical carpet covered floor and suspended tile ceiling. The immediate
interior serves as customer service, product display, and office space. The rear of the building is given to work
space. Wood floors are evident in the parts of the work space.

In the late 1930s a masonry structure stood on the site at 112 Lawrence Street (Figure 3). The Sanborn
agency recorded it as a post office. The building burned in the early 1940s (Luallen 1996). It was rebuilt in the mid
1940s, and may be shown in a 1956 photograph (Figure 5).

12. 322 Lawrence. Michael F. Terry Attorney (CR). ca. 1948. One Story Commercial Block. The attorney
office is crowned by a flat composite roof. The roof is concealed behind a parapet topped with stone. The facade is
clad in red brick. The fenestration is divided into three bays. Panels form the tops of the bays and bottoms of two
of them. One of the bays is occupied by a plate glass door replete with sidelights and transom. The floor of the
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interior displays linoleum tiles while the ceiling is of suspended tiles. The interior features some office furniture. A
partition divides P
the office area from storage.

13. 526, 528 Lawrence. Citizens Bank (Guy S. Johnson) (CR). ca. 1912. Multiple Story Commercial Block.
The erstwhile bank building stands at a height of two stories. A flat roof of composite material caps the upper floor.
[t is concealed behind a parapet. The facade is clad in patent stone. The upper floor has three bays inset in the north
wall of the former financial institution. The tops of the bay are strengthened by steel lintels. A steel beam spans
the width of the three bays of the fist floor. The center bay is recessed with three single leaf entry bays. The middle
door leads to a stairwell that in turn leads upstairs to an apartment. A large plate glass bay occupies the voids in the
brick wall on either side of a recessed bay. The bank vault is still intact in the east side of the building adjacent the
east wall. The vault features a steel outer door and two steel inner doors. The door surround is ornate with
Corinthian pilasters, a dentilated entablature, and a Federal Eagle. The space between the vault and the north wall or
facade is used for storage. It has linoleum flooring and the vestiges of tin panel ceiling. An inaccessible room is
located south of the vault. A hall way beneath the stairwell has a doorway that leads to Guy S. Johnson’s office.
Johnson’s engineering and surveying office is also accessible from the street via a door in the middle recessed bay.
The office is fronted by a reception area. A hallway leads to several office space. The walls are sheathed in painted
sheetrock; the floor covered with carpet; and the original ceiling is concealed by acoustic tiles.

Guy S. Johnson (1996), current owner, has a deed to the building that indicates it was erected circa
1911-1912. The Moulton Advertiser edition of December 27, 1911 reported that Citizens Bank would open for
business on January 1, 1928. Citizens Bank was still open for business in the building in the late 1930s (Figure 3).
It was located in the east half of the edifice and a general merchandise store in the west. Citizens Bank moved to the
east side of the square in 1940. The roof and east of the building are shown in Figure 4 and its roof and north side in
Figure 5. The 1950s view of the erstwhile bank building resembles its current look.

14. 534, 538 Lawrence. Aydt Business Service and Hilda’s Attic (NCR). ca. 1960. One Story Commercial Block.
The one story, commercial building is faced with brick. It has a flat roof fronted by a parapet. The facade, or north
wall, is rather plain in appearance. A partition wall bifurcates the building into two store spaces. Aydt Business
Service is housed in the west side of the edifice. A canvas awning hangs over a series of plate glass bays, one of
which is a single leaf entry. The interior has an acoustic tile ceiling and carpeting. Wood panel partitions divide the
interior into smaller work and service spaces. Hilda's Attic is ensconced in the east side of the building. The
interior features a tile ceiling and a linoleum tile floor. Much of the space is given to merchandise display. A
partition wall separates this area from some storage space.

This house of commerce did not exist in the mid 1950s (Figure 5).

15. 544 Lawrence. Itta-Butt’s Antigues (CR). ca. 1945 . One Story Commercial Block. This commercial block
is one of the few in the square that makes use of light colored bricks, but it has the typical roof. The facade displays
a modicum of decorative brickwork. A canvas awning spans most of the width of the facade. Below the awning
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there is a covered transom. Centered in between two sections of plate glass and a sidelight is a plate glass entrance.
On the inside, the floor is constructed of wood. Acoustic tile covers the ceiling. Fluorescent fixtures hang from the
ceiling. Rows of columns bare the loads of the ceiling. A set of wood stairs toward the rear, or south wall of the
building, lead to a loft space. Beneath the loft is storage space.

As recorded in the November 29, 1945 edition of The Moulton Advertiser, Mr. and Mrs. Farley had
finished the principal part of the work on their new store on the south side of the square. The Farley’s operated a
furniture store in this building (Jordan 1984). It is featured in a 1950s view of the square (Figure 5). The view
shows that the transom, which is now covered with plywood, was once a salient feature of the store.

16. 548 Lawrence. H and R Block Income Tax (CR). ca. 1947. One Story Commercial Block. The one story
business house has a flat roof concealed behind a parapet. Clad with brick, the structure lacks stylistic
embellishment. Signage projects from the facade. A shingled awning crowns the facade bays. A plate glass door
with sidelights is flanked by a plate glass display window. The interior has carpeting and a suspended tile ceiling.
Partitions create smaller work spaces.

The building is exhibited in Figure 5.

17. 552, 554 Lawrence. Video Active and Beltone (CR). ca. 1947. One Story Commercial Block. The one story,
commercial block is faced with brick. It has a flat roof fronted by a parapet. The facade, or north wall, is rather
plain in appearance. A shingled awning projects out from the building; it covers a transom. A partition wall
bifurcates the building into two store spaces. Video Active is housed in the west side of the edifice. There is a
series of two plate glass bays, one of which is a single leaf entry. The interior has an acoustic tile ceiling and
carpeting. Partitions divide the interior into smaller work and service spaces. Beltone is ensconced in the east side
of the building. The interior is similar to that of the west side.
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